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Board of Directors Meeting Agenda

Wednesday December 16", 2015
4:00pm
ECCTA Boardroom

801 Wilbur Avenue, Antioch, CA 94509
Available on line: www.trideltatransit.com

Please sce the last page of this agenda for:
* Public comment guidelines
» Agenda, staff report, and document availability
e Americans with Disabilities Act information
e Anticipated action by the Board of Directors

Call te Order: Chair Ben Johnson

a. Roll Call

2. Pledge of Allegiance
Board of Directors:

City of Antioch
Wade Harper

While public comments are encouraged and taken very seriously, State law
Public Comment prevents the Board of Directors from discussing items that are not on the

meeting agenda, If appropriate, staff will follow up on public comments. Mary Rocha

Flease see Public Camment Guldelines on Page 3 of this agenda.

City of Brentwood
Gene Clare
Barbara Guise

City of Oakley

4.  Chair’s Report: Chair Ben Johnson

5.  Consent Calendar (ACTION ITEM): Minutes, Financial Repott, and Doug Hardcastle**
Marketing Activities Report (see attachment: tab #1) Kevin Romick
a.  Minutes of the Board of Directors meeting of October 28", 2015 City of Pittsburg
b.  Financial Report ' Ben Johnson*
c.  Marketing Activities Report Pete Longmire
Requested Action: Approve items 5a, 5b, and 5S¢ Contra Costa County
Federal Glover
Mary Piepho
6. CEOQ’s Report: Jeanne Krieg Member-at-large
Ken Gray

a.  Operations Report (see attachment: tab #2)

_* Chair; FY 2015-16
** Vice-chair: FY 2015-16
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7.  ACTION AND DISCUSSION ITEMS

a.

DISCUSSION ITEM: Status Report: Facility Solar Project

(see attachment: tab #3)

Staff will present an update on the progress of the solar project for the ECCTA facility.
No Action Requested

DISCUSSION ITEM; Status Report: Operations Contract
(see attachment: tab #4)
Staff will present an update on the process for publishing the RFP for the operations
contract
No Action Requested

DISCUSSION ITEM: Status Report: Clipper
(see attachment: tab #5)
Staff will present an update on Clipper

No Action Requested

ACTION ITEM: Bus Options Assignment Agreement

(see attachment: fab #6)
Requesied Action: Authorize the CEO to sign the Bus Options Assignment
Agreement with King County Department of Transportation to secure two bus
options.

DISCUSSION ITEM: 2016 ECCTA Boatd of Director Meeting Dates

(see attachment: tab #7)
Reguested Action: Combine the November and December 2016 board meetings
and conduct that meeting on December 14", 2016.

ACTION ITEM: Independent Auditor’s Report for the year ended June 30, 2015
(see attachment: tab #8)
Requested Action: Adopt Resolution 151216a accepting the Independent
Auditor’s Report for the year ended June 30, 2015

8. DBoard of Directors Comments

Under this item, Directors are limited to providing information, asking clarifying
questions about matters not on the agenda, responding to public comment, referring
matters to staff, or requesting a report be made at another meeting.

9. Adjourn

Next Meeting: January 27, 2016

Eastern Contra Costa Transit Authority Board of Directors
Meeting Agenda — December 15, 2015
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Public Comment Guidelines:
e Persons requesting to address the ECCTA Board of Directors are requested to complete a Comment
Request form and submit it to the clerk. If possible, please submit the form prior to the start of the
meeting. At the appropriate time, the ECCTA chair will call on individuals to comment.

e During the public comment agenda item, the public is permitted to address the ECCTA Board of
Directors on items that are on the consent calendar or items not on the agenda. Individuals may also
make a request for future agenda Items. No action or discussion may take place on any item not
appearing on the posted agenda. . '

« If a person wishes to speak on a specific agenda item, the ECCTA chair will call on the individual when
the agenda item is being discussed by the Board of Directors.

s Persons addressing the ECCTA Board of Directors are requested to limit their remarks to three (3)
minutes unless an extension of time is granted by the chair, subject to approval of the ECCTA Board of
Directors,

et e

Agenda, staff report, and document availability:

Capies of all staff reports and documents subject to disclosure that relate to each item of business
referred to on the agenda are available for public inspection the Friday before each regularly scheduled
Board of Director's meeting at Tri Delta Transit's front desk located 801 Wilbur Avenue, Antioch,
California. Any documents subject to disclosure that are provided to all, or a majority of all, of the
members of the Board regarding any item on this agenda after the agenda has been distributed will also
be made available for inspection at Tri Delta Transit's front desk at the above referenced address during
regular business hours.

Americans with Disabilities Act Information:

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, the meeting room is wheelchair accessible and
disabled parking is available in the Tri Delta Transit parking lot. If you are a person with a disability and
you need disability-related modifications or accommodations to participate in this meeting, please
contact the CEQ’s Office at {925) 754-6622 or fax {925) 757-2530. Notification 48 hours prior to the
meeting will enable Tri Delta Transit to make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility to this
meeting. {28 CFR 35.102-35, 104 ADA Title 11} Please help us accommodate individuals with EI-MSC and
refrain from wearing scented products to this meeting, Please turn off any electronic paging device or cell

Anticipated action by the Board of Directors:
The Board of Directors may take action on any item on the agenda, which action may consist of the
recommended action, no action or a related action.

e & I g P e O
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Eastern Contra Costa Transit Authority Board of Directors
Meeting Agenda - December 16, 2015



TAB 1

Agenda ltem 5a,b,c
Consent Calendar (ACTION ITEM): Minutes, Financial Report, and
Marketing Activities Report

Board of Directors Meeting

Wednesday December 16, 2015

ECCTA Boardroom
801 Wilbur Avenue, Antioch, CA 94509




EASTERN CONTRA COSTA TRANSIT AUTHORITY
Antioch - Brentwood - Pittsburg - Oakley and Contra Costa County

MINUTES
October 28, 2015
The Eastern Contra Costa Transit Authority (ECCTA) meeting was called to order in the
ECCTA Board Room, 801 Wilbur Avenue, Antioch, California by Chair Ben Johnson at
4:00 P.M.

ROLL CALL / CALL TO ORDER

PRESENT: Gene Clare (Brentwood), Ken Gray (Member-at-Large), Barbara Guise
(Brentwood); Wade Harper (Antioch); Merl Craft, Alternate for Pete
Longmire (Pittsburg); Mary Rocha (Antioch); Kevin Romick (Oakley); and
Ben Johnson (Pittsburg/Chair)

ABSENT: Federal Glover (Contra Costa County); Mary N. Piepho (Contra Costa
County); and Doug Hardcastle (Oakley/Vice Chair)

STAFF: Jeanne Krieg, Chief Executive Officer (CEQ)
Steve Ponte, Chief Operating Officer (COO)
Ben Stock, Legal Counsel

OTHERS

PRESENT: Tighe Boyle, Mobility Matters
Susan Hinson, First Transit
Sharon Johnson, Antioch Resident
Gary Mitchell, First Transit
Hosie Pintily, First Transit
Elaine Welch, Mobility Matters -
Merle Wilson, Antioch Resident

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

Chair Johnson led the Pledge of Allegiance.

PUBLIC COMMENT

Merle Wilson, Antioch, a 90-year old resident, described some of the difficulties he had
encountered when attempting to use the Dial-a-Ride system in that he had been unaware
of the process and where to get off, and had been stuck on the bus for two hours. He
suggested that riders be advised of where the bus was going and how long it would take.
He also noted his understanding that Dial-a-Ride was primarily for those who were
disabled, but commented that he was not disabled. He asked if an individual could call
Dial-a-Ride to get a same-day ride to the store or to the hospital.
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Sharon Johnson, Antioch, commented that she had been aware over the years that
additional buses had been added to serve the area, although she suggested there was a
lack of coordination, particularly with respect to connections. She stated there did not
seem fo be a route to serve the shopping centers to make it easy for people, like her father
Mr, Wilson, to connect. In addition, while she did not live far from Deer Valley High
School, because there was no bus in her neighborhood to get kids to school she had to
drive her children to school. Given the growth in Antioch, she urged some consideration of
the bus routes to accommodate the residents.

Chair Johnson advised that staff would contact both Mr. Wilson and Ms. Johnson to speak
to their concems.

CHAIR’S REPORT

Chair Johnson reported that he and Directors Clare, Gray, Harper, and Longmire had
attended the American Public Transportation Association (APTA) Annual Conference. He
thanked the Board for the opportunity to participate. He noted that Director Harper had
also been a presenter at the event and had done a good job.

Chair Johnson commented that contrary to all the negative publicity of police officers, one
of the Lieutenants in the Pittsburg Police Department had the honor of being selected to
attend Law Enforcement Command College, an 18-month program designed to prepare
law enforcement leaders of today for the challenges of the future.

CONSENT CALENDAR

Chair Johnson reported that Michael Daugelli had not been shown in the minutes as being
present at the September 23, 2015 meeting.

On motion by Director Romick, seconded by Director Guise, ECCTA Boardmembers
adopted the Consent Calendar, as shown, which carried by the following vote:

A. Minutes of the Board of Directors meeting of September 23, 2015, as amended. -
B. Financial Report
C. Marketing Activities Report

AYES: Clare, Craft, Gray, Guise, Harper, Rocha, Romick, and Johnson
NOES: None

ABSTAIN:  None

ABSENT:  "Glover, Hardcastle, and Piepho

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S REPORT

A, Operations Report
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CEQ Jeanne Krieg presented Michael Daugell’s most recent column published in the
Antioch Senior Center newsletter, and a copy of Tri Delta Transit's latest schedule and
map, both of which had been provided to the Board and to the public. To save reprinting
costs, she reported the change to Route 201, which would not fake effect until February
21, 2016, had been included on the schedule. She also noted that most customers
preferred electronic schedules to the paper schedule, which would likely be phased out in
a few years other than as a print-on-demand feature.

Ms. Krieg stated that Chair Johnson and Directors Clare, Gray, Harper, and Longmire had
attended the APTA Annual Conference where the theme was Coffaboration, and there had
been several interesting sessions. Prior to that conference, she had participated in a
special Federal Transit Administration (FTA) session that had looked at ways to improve
access 1o healthcare. During the conference, Director Harper had joined the mayors of
San Jose and Cleveland on a panel to discuss how public transportation could be
strengthened through strategic collaboration.

“Ms. Krieg reported that Clipper® would go live on November 1, staff was ready to proceed,

and customers had been informed. She clarified that the implementation of Clipper®
would mean a change to the 24-hour pass to a true day pass; day pass prices had
increased from $3.35 to $3.75 for adults, and $1.35 to $1.75 for seniors and disabled.

Ms. Krieg advised that the approval to purchase the electric buses would be presented to
the Board as soon as the Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC) and the FTA
had the funding in order. In anticipation of that approval, the electric charging stations
were being designed to place four charging locations, although the electrical services into
the facility would be designed to serve 20 charging stations. She reported that another big
project was the solar for the building; the paperwork for the loan had been approved, the
next step would be the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) paperwork to be
submitted to the City of Antioch, after which it would go to the state. On another matter,
staff had met with City of Oakley staff regarding an Amtrak station for downtown Oakley
that would include bus service.

Ms. Krieg also reported that AC Transit had approached Tri Delta Transit staff seeking
office space for a top Information Technology (IT) employee who lived in Antioch and who
would work in Tri Delta Transit offices a couple of days a week, and who in turn would
provide IT support for Tri Delta Transit. The space was available and the resulting benefit
to both AC Transit and Tri Delta Transit represented good collaboration.

With respect to federal transportation legislation, Ms. Krieg reported that the House of
Representatives had passed the Surface Transportation Extension Act, extending
transportation authorization from October 29 through November 20, 2015. Since the funds
had already been collected through the gas tax, there would be no additional revenue
through that authorization. Lawmakers were hopeful of working out the issues to be able
" to come up with a long-term fully funded transportation bill.
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While not affecting Tri Delta Transit directly, Ms. Krieg explained that one part of the
Surface Transportation Extension Act was an extension of the deadline for installation of
Positive Train Control (PTC) on all passenger and rail trains. Without that extension, all
rail would have stopped on December 31, 2015.

Ms. Krieg repotted that the fiscal year had started with a slight decrease in ridership, likely
due to the decrease in gas costs. While that situation would continue to be monitored and
while a decrease in ridership was not good news, she stated with the cost of fuel at $2.18
a gallon this year versus $3.39 for last year, expenditures for fuel had gone down 35
percent, which was good for the budget. All other operation parameters and costs were
within budget.

Director Clare commented that part of the issue was with the goal of more and more
alternative means of propulsion as well as other methods to track vehicle use, and
suggested considering vehicle miles traveled (VMT).

Director Romick noted that Oregon and other states had been looking into VMT; where
people traveled and where they parked.

Ms. Krieg stated that staff was also iooking at vehicle licensing fees and other kinds of
petroleum extraction fees. She noted there were a number of different fees and various
models were being evaluated.

ACTION AND DISCUSSION ITEMS

A. Contra Costa County Mobility Management Project

Ms. Krieg introduced Elaine Welch and Tighe Boyle from Mobility Matters to make a
presentation.

Elaine Welch, Mobility Matters (formerly Senior Helpline Services), stated that in January
2015 her organization had been asked, through a grant with County Connection and the
Contra Costa Transportation Authority (CCTA), to take on the responsibility of beginning to
implement the Mobility Management Plan. Since January 2015, a number of things had
been accomplished and she highlighted those accomplishments to create a network of
integrated options that primarily addressed the mobility needs of seniors, individuals with
disabilities, and low income individuals. She reported that Mobility Matters had completed
an inventory of transportation providers; was in the process of creating a guide to identify
what was available, with appropriate information; working on a countywide database that
would tie into the guide that would also include all electronic features; and working on a
countywide approach to travel training so that the developmental disability, physical
disability, mental disability, and senior communities needing help could be educated as to
how to take public transportation.
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Ms. Welch summarized her dreams of being able to build and expand volunteer driver
programs to help those under 80 in the disabled community who may be struggling with
other types of transportation; to provide a mability display at Department of Motor Vehicle
(DMV) offices to identify services, passes, volunteer programs, and the like so that those
having their license taken away would know where to go; and to be able to offer travel
training to help those who needed to use the public transportation system.

Ms. Welch distributed a new Mobility Matters brochure to identify the mission of mobility
management along with a graphic to identify the available senior transportation options.
She explained that many people were living in hursing homes simply because they did not
have access to transportation to provide the necessary mobility to allow them to remain in
their homes. She offered examples of a number of cases where the loss of a driver's
license had devastated people and families; described the transportation options available
to seniors; and of the options available explained that volunteer driver programs were the
onily free, one-on-one, door-through-door programs that provided the necessary service;
and Mobility Matters offered that type of service.

Director Gray stated that he had worked with Ms. Welch, who commented that Mobility
Matters offered a partnership of working together with public transit to provide the
necessary services for seniors.

When asked by Director Clare if there was a problem getting volunteer drivers for East
County, Ms. Welch affirmed that was the case and added that if volunteer drivers could not
afford the gas to travel where they were needed, Mobility Matters would help in that
regard. She emphasized that there was a need to collaborate with public transportation.

Director Clare suggested that Mobility Matters approach service organizations for help.
B. BART Tickets To Go Agreement

Ms. Krieg stated that ECCTA had an agreement with BART since 1989 to sell BART
tickets; the agreement was effective for three years; and ECCTA was compensated by
BART in the amount of one percent of the total value of tickets sold every month. She
recommended approval of the BART Tickets To Go Agreement.

On motion by Director Clare, seconded by Director Guise, ECCTA Boardmembers
adopted Resolution 151028 authorizing the CEO to execute a three-year agreement
with BART to sell discounted BART tickets, carried by the following vote.

AYES: Clare, Craft, Gray, Guise, Harper, Rocha, Romick, and Johnson
NOES: None

ABSTAIN: None

ABSENT: Glover, Hardcastle, and Piepho
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C. Mutual Aid Agreement

Ms. Krieg stated that ECCTA was a party to a Mutual Aid Agreement with all of the San
Francisco Bay Area Transit Operators, to offer mutual aid in the event of an emergency.
The agreement, in place since 2008, had been amended to add the Solano County Transit
District and Napa County Transportation and Planning Agency as active participants. She
recommended approval of the amended Mutual Aid Agreement.

On motion by Director Romick, seconded by Director Harper, ECCTA Boardmembers
authorized the CEOQO to sign the amended San Francisco Bay Area Transit Operators
Mutual Aid Agreement, carried by the following vote.

AYES; Clare, Craft, Gray, Guise, Harper, Rocha, Romick, and Johnson
NOES: None

ABSTAIN: None

ABSENT: Glover, Hardcastle, and Piepho

D. Tri Delta Transit Brentwood Intermodaj Transit Center

Ms. Krieg explained that the question of a Tri Delta Transit Brentwood Intermodal Transit
Center had come about quickly although BART Director Joel Keller had been talking about
it for a while. She noted that Mr. Keller needed quick movement to allow the BART Board
to consider funding the transit center, which had originally been called the Mokelumne
Intermodal Transit Center. She referred to the letters from Brentwood Mayor Bob Taylor,
which had been included in the Board packets along with other letters of support and
noted that ECCTA staff had submitted a letter to advise that the matter would be
discussed at the current meeting. A draft letter for Chair Johnson's signature had also
been provided to the Board for consideration.

Director Clare thanked Ms. Krieg for the effort and referenced an area that had been
zoned for transportation/high density type businesses; 20 percent transportation, 80
percent commercial, with the vision to have property that could be a future site for BART
expansion. He emphasized the importance of designating something and stated this
would be an in between stop pending BART expansion, considering ten acres for a
parking lot and another nine acres for a future BART expansion, offering a good mixture of
moving forward while also recognizing the property owner's needs.

Director Harper noted that the City of Antioch had recognized the location for a BART
station and he would take the proposal to the Antioch City Council for a resolution. He
supported the draft letter.

Director Romick stated the TRANSPLLAN Committee had previously considered sites for
future BART stations and the subject site had been designated as the preferred location
for a future BART station, with the ultimate goal of extending BART all the way to Tracy.
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On motion by Director Guise, seconded by Director Harper, ECCTA Boardmembers
authorized Board Chair Ben Johnson to sigh the letter of support for the Tri Delta
Transit Brentwood Intermodal Transit Center on behalf of the ECCTA Board of
Directors, carried by the following vote.

AYES: Clare, Craft, Gray, Guise, Harper, Rocha, Romick, and Johnson
NOES: None

ABSTAIN:  None

ABSENT: Glover, Hardcastle, and Piepho

E. Advertising on Buses

Ms. Krieg stated that Chair Johnson had requested the item which had started as a
conversation of a particularly ugly ad that had covered the entire bus, and he wanted to
bring the conversation forward as to whether to continue advertising on buses in the
future. She noted that the advertising contract included a cancellation clause for
termination with or without cause. She suggested another option could be to alter the
contract to prohibit any wraps above the window or advertise only on the backs of the
buses and not on the sides.

Chair Johnson commented that some advertising completely obscured the Tri Delta
Transit name, which was why he had requested a discussion of the issue. He did not want
to see Tri Delta Transit lose its identification, did not support wrapping the buses, and
suggested there was also a safety issue.

When asked, Ms. Krieg explained that the placement of Tri Delta Transit identification
differed depending on the bus. Newer buses had the hame on the top over the windows
while the older buses and express buses placed the name below the window. She added
that the contract allowed a full wrap on five of the buses although the contract could be
medified to eliminate that practice.

Director Rocha commented that the conversation had already occurred and the Board had
recommended a half wrap. -

Director Romick supported full wrapping as long as the Tri Delta Transit insignia and hame
remained visible. He wanted to continue to allow the advertisement without full wrapping
on the older buses.

With respect to safety, Ms. Krieg stated that there would be views out but no views in. She
would return to the Board with an amendment to the contract at the December meeting
and find out what it would mean to modify the contract as suggested

Director Gray requested examples of the advertisements.
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l.egal Counsel Ben Stock clarified that Tri Delta Transit could not force an amendment to
the contract; the scope of the contract was three years although there was a right to
terminate with no cause.

Director Harper added that the CEO should feel free to address any safety issues whether
inside or outside of the bus.

The item was continued to the Board meeting scheduled for December 16, 2015,
F. November 2015 ECCTA Board Meeting

Ms. Krieg explained that with few items on the agenda for the November meeting, there
had been a suggestion to cancel the meeting scheduled for November 18, which had been
scheduled one week earlier than‘ usual given Thanksgiving.

On motion by Director Romick, seconded by Director Guise, ECCTA Boardmembers
authorized the cancellation of the November 18, 2015 meeting of the ECCTA Board of
Directors, carried by the following vote:

AYES: Clare, Craft, Gray, Guise, Harper, Rocha, Romick, and Johnson
NOES: None

ABSTAIN:  None

ABSENT: Glover, Hardcastle, and Piepho

BOARD OF DIRECTORS COMMENTS

Director Gray highlighted the sessions he had attended at the APTA conference,
particularly the session on demographics; reported on his attendance at the Mobility
Workshop at John Muir Hospital when Assemblymember Frazier had made a presentation
on safe transportation issues; and noted the number of non-profits involved in senior
mobility. He stated there was truly a good partnership between a public and non-profit and
noted that there would be more and more with respect to senior mobility in the future,

Director Romick advised that the CCTA was in the process of reauthorizing the Measure J
half cent sales tax and possibly adding an additional half cent sales tax; and working on a
Transportation Expenditure Plan (TEP) and sought input from the members of the Board
on what they would like to see. He reported that on November 2, there would be a
Telephone Town Hall meeting for Eastern Contra Costa County from 6:00 to 7:00 P.M. by
calling 1-877-229-8493, Access Code 112664, to discuss transportation issues for the next
20 years.

Director Craft reported that 18 to 20 would be graduating from the Labor Union, solar
instaltation and construction technology, on November 10. '
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Director Harper stated he had enjoyed the APTA conference, and thanked Ms. Krieg for
recommending him for the panel with the mayors of Cleveland and San Jose to discuss
collaboration. With respect to collaboration, he noted that everyone would be working on
the Measure J extension together. He also thanked those who had spoken during public
comment and stated that comments from customers allowed the organization to improve.

Director Rocha thanked Mr. Wilson for his comments, and emphasized the need to start
planning a strategy for the future to allow seniors mobility beyond what currently existed.
She also reported that there would be a Halloween event at the Antioch Fairgrounds, and
the Month of November was Alzheimer's Awareness Month.

Director Clare reported that there had been a Halloween event in downtown Brentwood
last Saturday when an estimated 7,000 adults and children had participated. He
highlighted the sessions he had attended at the APTA conference; thanked Tri Delta
Transit staff for making the conference such a wonderful experience; and noted that the
theme throughout had been the changing demography, not only seniors but millennials as
well who preferred mass transit. With respect to the presentation from Mobility Matters, he
requested a report on Tri Delta Transit paratransit senior services and the guidelines,
costs, data on users, repeat users, how many met the qualification, incentives that could
be offered to consider other services, and the like. As the population aged, he recognized
that senior services would require more and more of the budget and requested a report to
provide that information.

Director Rocha asked if the trolley was still in operation in Brentwood, and when told that it
was not, suggested the cost of financing a shuttle should also be considered. Director
Clare agreed, but not with a door-to-door service.,

Chair Johnson stated that on November 14, the California Theatre would offer a program
to help veterans and provide veterans services. He added that November 11 was
Veterans Day and there would be a pancake breakfast in Pittsburg from 8:00 to 10:00
A.M., with a Veterans Day ceremony at 11:00 A.M.

Director Guise advised that for the first time the Brentwood Cemetery would be honored
by having wreaths placed on the graves,

ADJOURNMENT

Chair Johnson adjourned the mesting of the Eastem Contra Costa Transit Authority at
5:15 P.M. to December 16, 2015 at 4.00 P.M. at the ECCTA Administration Facility, 801
Wilbur Avenue, Antioch, California.

Respectfully submitted,

Anita L. Tucci-Smith
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TRI DELTA TRANSIT

Staff Report to ECCTA Board of Directors

Meeting Date: December 16, 2015

Agenda Item: Marketing/Communications Activities — November/December
Agenda Item 5c¢

Lead Staff: Mike Furnary
Approved: Jeanne Krie
I. Completed Marketing Activities
1. Collateral Updates
Completed comprehensive print & vehicle communications updates (design, print
install) to align with launch of Clipper, new passes and fares.
2. Ticket reprint and distribution
Completed revisions to new paper Day Passes (design, print, magnetic/electronic
encoding) to align with all other East Bay operators with Clipper launch and
coordinated ticket exchanges with all ticket sales outlets, including updating
grocery store PLUSs and repotts.
3. Fall Faire Cross Promotion
Completed cross promotion with Fairgrounds exchanging ad space for event
sponsorship, advertising and customer discounts to bus riders.
4. Clipper Card Launch/Outreach
Completed launch activities in conjunction with MTC and East Bay operators
including outreach events at eBART, Los Medanos College, Somersville
Towne Center, and Pittsburg BART. Additional Clipper tasks included
programming fare boxes for new fares and passes.
5. Clipper Customer Service Training
Completed staff training of Clipper customer service procedures/policies
including Ticket Office Terminal (TOT) training.
6. Brentwood Beer Festival PR/Sponsorship
Worked with local chamber event to provide free bus passes to event
participants in the event that a safe ride was needed after the event. 150
passes were made available in exchange for event sponsorship recognition.
7. How to Ride Video Updates
In process of completing necessary edits to online video tutorials to align with
recent changes associated with launch of Clipper. Completed project to be
uploaded online to trideltatransot.com as well as Youtube channel.
8. More Than Bus Ad Campaign
Continuing production schedule of new television commercials for newly
launched ad campaign.
9. Ongoing marketing programs
- Welcome Pack mailing
-2 for 1 tickets on Route 300 (subsidized by 511 Contra Costa)

Agenda Item #5¢
Eastern Contra Costa Transit Authority
Board of Directors

Meeting: December 16, 2015



- Take One on board newsletter

I1. Planned Marketing/Communications Activities

511 Contra Costa Commuter Pass commuter promotion
High-Density housing direct mail

Route specific marketing promotions

Senior outreach 2016

Clipper faster boarding campaign

Customer courtesy on-board campaign

Online/web customer survey

Nk L=

II1. Current Organization Commitments
1. East County Senior Coalition
2. APTA Marketing Committee

3. Local Chamber of Commerce Participation
Pittsburg, Brentwood, Qakley

Agenda Item #5¢
Eastern Contra Costa Transit Authority
Board of Directors

Meeting: December 16, 2015
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Board of Directors Meeting

Wednesday December 16, 2015
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801 Wilbur Avenue, Antioch, CA 94509



TRI DELTA TRANSIT

ECCTA Executive
Team

Jeanne Krieg
Chief Executive Officer

Steve Ponte
Chief Operating Officer

Tom Harais
Chief Financial Officer

Ann Hutcheson
Direcfor of
Administrative Services

Kevin Moody
Director of
Maintenance

Mike Furnary
Director of Marketing

Susan Hinson
First Transit
Director of Operations

Chief Executive Officer’s Report

November-December 2015

Highlights:

e Staff is working with the advertising contractor to address the issues discussed
during the October Board meeting. Options will be presented to the Board of
Directors during the January 27, 2016 meeting,.

o A five-year fully funded federal transportation bill was passed and signed by
the President.

¢ Clipper is now accepted on all Tri Delta Transit fixed route buses.

¢ The Clipper small operators subgroup, which includes all small operators in the
nine county Bay Area, continues to meet on a regular basis.

* BART announced the December 31, 2015 end of the BART Plus program.

e The advisory team for the Contra Costa Mobility Management project
continues to meet, The group is moving toward forming a CTSA which will
provide additional funding opportunities.

» | was elected to serve on the California Transit Association’s Executive
Committee.

+ The Bus Route Evaluation & Re-design project continued. Publlc hearings will
be held early next year.

» The UC Berkeley PATH Integrated Dynamic Transit Operations system
demonstration project that will use Tri Delta Transit as the subject continued.
CCTA is overseeing the Caltrans-funded project that will demonstrate transit
connect, dynamic dispatch, and dynamic rideshare in east county,

» Work continued on the Contra Costa County Express Bus Plan. Arup is the
consultant.

o Construction throughout East County continues to be a challenge. On-time
performance is being affected.

Pending:

» Low interest loan for facility solar system

» Electric bus procurement

» FTA’s Safety Program

» Federal grants

> Service to Brentwood LMC campus (August 2018)

» Next generation of Clipper (2019)

» Service to eBART stations in Pittsburg and Antioch (2019)

» Fixed route bus delivery (buses will be on production line October 2016)
» A&E: Antioch Park & Ride lot (in process)

» Qakley Park & Ride lot construction

» PATH Integrated Dynamic Transit Operations system demonstration project
» Contra Costa County Mobility Management Plan implementation

» Contra Costa County Transportation Plan

» Operations Contract (expires June 30, 2016)

» CCTA Express Bus Study (update to the 2001 study)

» Electric Car Charging Station grant

» Park & Ride lots — land acquisition Agenda Tem #6a
Eastern Contra Costa Transit Authorily
Board of Direciors Meeting
December 16, 2015




TRI DELTA TRANSIT

YTD COMPARISON
FR RIDERSHIP
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992,358 1,060,728 1,183,607 1,197,640 1,219,719
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1,137,047

Agenda ltem #6a
Eastern Contra Costa Transit Authority
Board of Director's Meefing
December 16, 2016
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EASTERN CONTRA COSTA TRANSIT AUTHORITY
KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS BY SERVICE

. YTD COMPARISON
Actual Budget [15/16B | - Actual % A
10/11 | 1112 | 1243 | 13/14 | 14/15 15/16 % A 3] Nev-14 | Nov-1 o
DIAL-A~RIDE
PASSENGERS i
Total DAR Trips Provided 129,041 130,619 128,999 131,476 133,768 140,000 5% ‘:"_ : 58,509 54,6880 -7%
Average Weokday Ridership 474 481 470 471 487 506 4%] 507 489 -3%
Average Sat Ridership 110 106 140 180 153 164 %[ 181 124 -32%
Average Sun/Hol Ridershlp 71 71 72 68 63 66 5% 68 44 -36%
Average Passengers/Hour (wkdys) 2.2 2.2 1.9 1.9 2.0 2.2 9% } 21 2.1 2%
CUSTOMER SERVICE ;
Ride Refusals / Day 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0%+ 0.0 0.0 0%
Customer Complaints 0.148% 0.183% 0.097% 0.071% 0.103% 0.103% 0% 0.099% 0.112% 13%
On Time Performance 85% 85% 87% 89% 87% 90% 3%]) B8% BE% ~2%
MAINTENANCE . B
Gallons of Fuel Consumed 85,174 118,392 138,678 145,043 138,528 144,619 4%).:. 61,501 57 318 %
Mlles Between Preventable Acclidents 61,377 898,467 328,002 244,390 162,293 200,000 23%]| 418,258 98,939 -76%
Niles Between Road calls 21,920 56,154 109,568 61,108 139,113 100,000 ; 83,683 79,1583 -5%
COST RATIOS
Farebox Recovery Ratio 12% 11% % 10% 10% 10% 10% 11% 10%
$1Gal Fuel $ 333 (% 3.84 [ $ 3.81 367 |8 3.001|% 3.25 i 33318 2,89 -13%
Operating Cost/Passenger $ A7 | 8 30,58 | § 33.22 3525 | % 3418 | 35,23 3% 3390418 35,50 5%
Operating CostiRevenus Hour $ 83.06 | § 6434 [ $ B3.52 | § G8.75 | § 69.81 | § 71.80 3%| ... 8 698113 74.74 7%
Operating Gost/Revenue Mile $ 525 | § 52218 535 (% 576 | § 5.74 1 $ 6.01 5%).] § 58118 5.97 3%
FIXED ROUTE
PASSENGERS
Total FR Trips Provided 2,351,862 | 2,431,768 | 2,740,834 | 2832264 | 2,806,028 | 2,826,000 1%+ 1,219,718 | 1,137,047 -7%
Average Wookday Ridership 8,345 8,694 9,616 9,930 9,794 9,949 2%]° 10,225 9,622 -7%
Average 5at Ridership 2,594 2753 3,232 3,464 3,498 3,391 -3%]| . 3,601 3,377 -6%
Average Sun/tiol Ridership 1,989 2,087 2,788 2,692 2,787 2,695 -3%| 2,854 2,709 6%
Average PassengersiHour 15.1 15.9 17.7 19.0 19.2 19.3 1% 19.8 19,0 -4%
CUSTOMER SERVICE .2
Gustomer Gomplalnts 0.020% 0.023% 0.012% 0.009% 0.009% 0.009% 0% 0.008% 0.009% 18%
On Time Performance 7% 86% 86% 92% 92% 90% 2% 82% 90% -3%
MAINTENANCE : ! -
Gallons of Fuel Consumed 539 072 635,276 562,702 603,013 600 072 594,981 -1%] 254,428 253,590 0%
Miles Between Proventable Accidents 170,175 120,644 65,392 110,754 98,066 100,000 2%| - 146,300 125,604 -14%
Miles Bafween Road calls 37,539 32,481 42,844 87,684 41,553 50,000 20% 56,896 40,193 -29%
COST RATIOS - ' -
Farchox Recovery Ratio 16% 16% 18% 18% 18% 8% 1%}, 7% 18% B%
$1Gal Fuel $ 320 | § 352§ 38518 348 [ § 277 1% 3.00 8%~ | § 323 | & 2.4 -34%
Operating Cost/Passenger $ G52 | % 880 % 6015 558 | § 5541 ¢ 679 5% $ 539 | % 563 4%
Operating CostiRevenus Hour $ 8854 |$ 10505 |% 106535 40576 | % 10636 |8 111.77 5% | $ 10700(|% 105.85 0%
Operating Cost/Revenue Mila % 598 % 746 | $ 786 |5 71| 8 7.621% 8.07 6% $ 73| % 7.52 -3%

Agenda Nem itéa
Eastern Contra Costa Transif Authority
Board of Director's Meeting
December 16, 2015 Page 20f 3




TRI DELTA TRANSIT
COMPARATIVE YTD FR RIDERSHIP BY ROUTE

TOTAL PASSENGER TRIPS

ROUTE YTD COMPARISON
% Chy 10/11 % Chy 11112 % Chg 12013 % Chg 13114 % Chg 14115 | %chy Nov-14 Nov-15 | %Chg
200 -38% 36,121 3% 37,682 4% 55322 | 47% 55,814 1% 54,167 -3%]- 22,821 21,020 -8%
201 -1G% 105,655 6% 110,660 5% 110,677 8% 124,289 4% 112,116 | -10%} 44,555 47,893 7%
300 -18% 290,750 B% 302,067 4% 200,213 -4% 328,582 | 13% 353,802 8% 150,082 145,535 -4%
379 2% 12,230 0% 10,235 | 18% 15,232 | 48% 6,769 | -66% 3,223 | -52%[ 1,604 1,838 22%
380 -10% 665,464 4% 584,779 3% 680,081 16% 682,650 0% 566,704 2% 204,482 266,608 -9%
383 -12% 39,780 8% 34,210 -14% 36,031 2% 32,073 8% 30,200 -B%}. 13,064 10,867 | -17%
384 -32% 25,663 | -14% 26,201 2% 5,227 | -69% NAA[ A NiA| Na] NIA NiA NA]
385 1% 36,855 8% 36,481 1% 61,388 | 68% 70,074 | 6% 58,013 A% 27,713 29,810 8%
336 -28% 4,650 -4% 3,042 | -35% 2172 | 29% 1,902 [ -12% 1,583 | -17%| - 608 571 -18%
387 -13% 155,608 2% 212,731 9% 262,306 |  23% 264,036 1% 257,944 | 3%} 111,644 102,178 8%
388 1% 311,242 5% 320,981 % 366,041 14% 400,190 0% 370,128 -8%]: 164,133 147,808 | -10%
389 8% 48,272 0% 46,723 3% 53255 | 14% 53,068 0% 51,480 [ -3%|. - 20,675 20,799 i%
390 -10% 49,042 5% 52,850 7% 68,564 | 30% 72,054 5% 71,211 -1%% 29,892 29,903 0%
301 -B% 332,841 0%| 346,080 4% 370,500 % 366,640 4% 402,579 4% 175,920 180,796 9%
Dimes a Ride -AT% 12745 | -10% 11328 | -1i% WAL N VAR Nl Nl NIA N/A NIA|
Delta Express (Hac) 16% 18,586 18% 11,831 [ -36% NIA[ N NfA| WA WAl Nl N/A N/A NIA]
Shuttles -45% 8,161 35% 9,448 3% 4,941 | -48% 3,370 | -32% 5,376 | 59% 5,375 4,637 | 14%
392 -4% 105,702 A% 112,330 5% 133569 | 19% 142,284 7% 142,650 0%l 62,852 57,479 -9%
393 -10% 104,487 1% 111,687 7% 135,181 21% 133,078 2% 141,281 B%]. . 61,146 59,088 -3%
394 9% 48,708 | -10% 50,614 8% 71567 | 41% 64,904 | 8% 63,067 %] . 20,170 24,400 | -16%
395 X Ni  NIA AN 8187 [ 100% 9,497 [ 100% 10,485 | " 160%]": 3002 5,817 94%
Total Fixed Route | -13%| 2 351 662 0%| 2.431,768 3% 2,740,334 13%] 2,832,264 3%| 2,806,020 1%+ 1219718 | 1,137,047 -1%

AVERAGE PASSENGERS PER REVENUE HOUR

ROUTE 3 ] YTD COMPARISON
%eby | 10/11 | %cho| 11/12 [w%cha| 12/113 |%chg| 13M4 |%ochg| 14M8 |wcha] ] Nov-{4 | Nov-15 [ %cng
200 -8% 0.0 7% 10.3 % 128 [ 22% 12.5 1% 12.6 7 12,6 i2.0 5%
201 3% 18.1 3% 18.7 3% 178 [ -10% 17.8 1% 170 5%} 18.4 17.6 9%
300 -14% 16,2 7% 16.8 % 15.8 0% 18.6 | 18% 203 [ 1o%|. - 20,8 20.2 3%
379 A 13.2 4% 86| -26% 10.7 9% 16.8 | 57% 265) 67%).. 32.5 39.5 2%,
380 -14% 16.6 5% 17.4 5% 2021 18% 20.6 2% 20.2 2%) - 21.3 19.9 7%
383 3% 1.2 8% 9.7 -13% 10.2 5% 126 23% 13.0 3% 13.3 1.7 [ -12%
384 26% 96| -10% 10.2 7% 14.6 | 13% N/A[ NiA WAl N NIA N/A N/A
385 18% 2.0 -10% 11.1 % 1.9 7% 12.9 5% 12,3 4% 12.5 12,3 2%
386 9% 6.0 2% 3.9 -36% 3.6 7% 63| 714% 5.3 %] 73 83 -14%
387 -16% 17.7 2% 106 | 1% 228  16% 23,7 4% 233 2%]; 23.0 22.9 4%
388 -14% 16.0 4% 15.5 3% 171 10% 18.7 7% 174 5% 18.1 17.6 3%
389 9% 14.7 2% 13.6 8% 13.4 1% 14.4 8% 16.4 7% 14.5 i5.8 8%|
300 8% 09| -19% 10.7 9% 186 | 73% 208 [ 17% 21,5 3%| 217 213 1%
39 -13% 16.8 0% 18.7 11% 18.6 5% 20.5 4% 21.9 T%| 229 21.2 7%
Dimes a Ride -13% 8.4 -10% 108 | 38% N/A] WA WA[ WA NiA| L N/A NIA NiA
Delta Express {Hac) -25% 9.0 12% 8.1 -10% NiA N/A NA A N/A NFA NA N/A N/A
Shuttles -25% 1.7 44% NA[ A N/A]  NIA 6.4 RFA 30.7 | 383% 30.7 245 -20%
392 0% 15.1 -2% 15.2 1% 17.6 16% 19.1 % 8.9 1% 19.6 18.0 -8%
393 -14% 15.7 1% 16.4 5% i7.5 7% 17.5 % 18,7 [ 19.0 18,4 3%
304 £% 10.8 -B% 11.7 9% 150 28% 170 13% 5.9 1%l 17.3 146 [ -15%
385 NIA NiAl  NIA N/A| A 12,0 N/A 16.2 NIA, 16.4 1%] 11.0 21.3 93%
Total Fixed Route | 9% 15.1 -1% 15.9 5% 1771 12% 19.0 7% 19.2 1% 19.8 19,0 4%

Agenda itemm #6a

Eastern Conlra Costa Transit Aulhorily

Board of Direclor's Meeling
December 16, 2015
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TRI DELTA TRANSIT

Staff Report to ECCTA Board of Directors

Meeting Date:

Agenda Item:

Lead Staff:

Approved:

December 16, 2015

Status Report: Facility Solar Project
Agenda #7a

Steve Ponte

Jeanne Krieg@/

Status Report

» In August 2014, an RFP was published for solar design consulting. Two
firms submitted proposals.

¢ In October 2014, the Board of Directors approved a contract for the facility
solar project with EDesignC, Inc.

» In September 2015, the final report was presented to staff. It included the
design for the project as well as a recommendation to finance the system
through the California Energy Commission no/low interest loan program.

» In September 2015, the ECCTA Board of Directors adopted a resolution
authorizing staff to apply for a low interest loan. The funding cycle would
have funded the ECCTA project in December 2015.

» Staff began the application process which included a requirement for a
CEQA (California Environmental Quality Act). Since the funding for the
project is tight and it was apparent that the CEQA results for the project
would be a negative declaration (meaning there is no impact to the
environment), staff requested the City of Antioch to be the lead on the

CEQA process.

Agenda lfem #7a

Eastern Contra Costa Transit Authomty

Board of Directors

Meeting. December 16, 2015



e On Tuesday, December 8", city staff informed ECCTA staff that;

o A negative declaration would not be issued.

o ECCTA is required to hire an arborist to verify the trees are not
native. These are the trees that were selected by the City of
Antioch as part of the facility construction projects. The trees are alll
non-native and include:

» Street: 6 mature trees (planted in 1987)
n  Street: 2 new trees (planted in 2012)
* Parking lot: 9 young trees (planted 2004)

o ECCTA is required to hire a biologist to ensure that there are no
birds that use the trees for nesting.

o ECCTA is required to submit an artist rendition of the project as a

“street view in addition to the overhead drawing that was submitted
with the proposal. This drawing would be sent to the Planning
Commission for atheistic approval.

o City staff stated that, if ECCTA is willing move the project to the bus
parking lot, they would issue a CEQA negative-declaration. This is
not a possibility: the poles would interfere with bus circulation.

¢ Due to the unexpected turn of events with the CEQA, ECCTA missed the
December 2015 funding cycle and will be delayed until the next funding
cycle in December 2016. This is concerning because the PTSMEA grant
that was allocated to ECCTA to partially fund the project and to pay for the
solar consultant expires in June 2016. Staff is looking at options to use the
funds prior to June.

o ECCTA staff, in conversations with the California Energy Commission,
learned that there is a small possibility that some funding might be
available in June 20186. This means the application must be submitted as
soon as possible,

Staff Request

No action required. At this point, there is nothing that can be done to get into the
planned December 2015 funding cycle. ECCTA staff is working to get the loan
application submitted as soon as possible so, if the “very slight possibility” that
funding will be available in June 20186, our application will be in place.

Agenda ltem #7a
Eastem Contra Costa Transtt Authority
Board of Directors

Meeting: December 16, 2015
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TRI DELTA TRANSIT

Staff Report to ECCTA Board of Directors

Meeting Date: December 16, 2015

Agenda Item: Status Report: Operations Contract
Agenda #7b

Lead Staff: Jeanne Kneg%/

Staff will discuss the process for the new operations contract that will be effective
July 1, 2016. ECCTA currently contracts for transit operations with First Transit.

Staff Request
No action required.

Agenda Item #7b
Eastern Contra Costa Transit Authorty
Board of Directors

Meeting: December 16, 2015
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TRI DELTA TRANSIT

Staff Report to ECCTA Board of Directors

Meeting Date: December 16, 2015

Agenda Item: Status Report: Clipper

Agenda #7c
Lead Staff: Steve Ponte
Approved: Jeanne Krieg@

Status Report
Staff will present a status report on the first month of Clipper operation on Tri
Delta Transit’s fixed route buses. Some statistics for the month of November are:
e 40,130 total tags
e 13,176 tags on Tri Delta Transit
o 6.7% of total passengers are using Clipper
e 32% of east bay tags are Tri Delta Transit
= CCCTA has 27% of tags
= WCCTA has 22% of tags
» |LAVTA has 13% of tags
65% of the tags are using the express bus routes
35% of the tags are local rides
20% access BART one way
25% access BART on both local and express
Less than 1% using day pass accumulator
5% using transfers

Staff Request
No action required.

Agenda Item #7¢c
Eastern Contra Costa Transit Authonty
Board of Direcfors

Meeting: December 16, 2015
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TRI DELTA TRANSIT

Staff Report to ECCTA Board of Directors

Meeting Date: December 16, 2015

Agenda Item: Bus Options Assignment Agreement
Agenda ltem 7d

Lead Staff: Steve Ponte
Approved: Jeanne Kriegg/
Background

The Federal Transit Administration formalized the rules for an agency fto
purchase vehicles using another agency’s approved purchase contract (referred
to as a piggy-back). ECCTA staff desires to use a piggy-back option with King
County Department of Transportation to purchase two Proterra electric buses. In
order for ECCTA fo negotiate with Proterra, ECCTA must secure two options
from King County. Attached is the proposed Bus Options Assighment Agreement
required by King County Department of Transportation to release two buses
options to ECCTA.

'

Recommendation:

Authorize the CEO to sign the Bus Options Assignment Agreement with King
County Department of Transportation to secure two bus options.

Agenda ltem #7d
Eastom Contra Costa Transit Authonty
Board of Directors

Meeting: Decamber 16, 2015



BUS OPTIONS ASSIGNMENT AGREEMENT

by and among
King County's Department of Transportation, Metro Tfansit Division
‘and |
Eastern Contra Costa Transit Anthority
and

Proterra Ine,

THIS BUS OPTIONS LIMITED ASSIGNMENT OF RIGHTS AND ASSUMPTION OF
DUTIES AGREEMENT, (the "Bus Options Assignment Agreement"), is made and
entered into this day of -, 2015, by and among King
County, a home rule charter county and political subdivision of the State of Washington,
by and through its Department of Transportation, Metro Transit Division (the “County”
and/or "Metro Transit" and/or the "Assignor"),

Eastem Contra Costa Transit Authority
(the "Assignee"),

and

Proterra Ine., a Delaware corporation
("Proterra” and/or the "Contractor"),

any of which entities may be referred to hereinafter md1v1dua11y as "PalTy" or collectlvely
as the "Parties."

"RECITALS

WHEREAS, the County and Proterra are parties to a ¢ontract, identified as EB 11-2
("Manufacture and Delivery of 40 Foot Heavy Duty Low Floor All-Electric Transit
Buses"), for the procurement of certain tr an31t buses detatled therein (the "Bus
Procurement Contract"); and

WHEREAS, Section A1.01 of the Bus Procurement Contract established a maximum
base quantity of two buses to be potentially purchased by the County over a five-year
‘period and an option quantity of up to an additional 200 buses; and

BUS OPTIONS ASSIGNMENT AGREEMENT
King County, Eastern Contra Costa Transit Authorlty, and Proterra Oct15
Page 1 of 4



WHEREAS, Section B2.19 of the Bus Procurement Contract authorizes the County to

assign to another transit property or governmental entity part or all of the option quantity
of buses; and

WHEREAS, the Assignee, desires to acquire a number of additional buses for its transit
fleet and has asked the County to assign part of the available option quantity to the
Assignee; and

WHEREAS, the County has determined that it has sufficient capacity in the combined
base quantity and remaining option quantity available to it through the Bus Procurement
Contract to meet its own bus procurement needs over the remaining term of the Bus
Procurement Contract; and

WHEREAS, Proterra has been informed of the Assignee's desire to acquire two (2) buses
'via an assignment of a portion of the option quantity of buses available to the County
through the Bus Procurement Contract; and

WHEREAS, the Contractor has no objection to the County asmgnmg a portlon of the
available option quantity of buses to the Assignee;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the terms, conditions and covenants set forth
herein, the Parties agree as follows:

1.  PURPOSE

The purpose of this Bus Options Assignment Agreement is to set forth the terms and -
conditions upon which the County will assign to the Assignee a portion of the option
quantity of buses available to the County through the Bus Procurement Contract.

2. ASSIGNOR’S LIMITED ASSIGNMENT OF RIGHT TO PURCHASE BUS
OPTIONS

Pursuant to Section B2.19.01 of the Bus Procurement Contract and the terms and
conditions of this Bus Options Assignment Agreement, the County hereby assigns to the
Assignee the right to purchase from the Contractor two (2) buses of the-option quantity of
200 buses available to the County as provided for in Section Al 01 of the Bus
Procurement Contract.

3. ASSIGNEE'S COMPLIANCE WITH CONTRACT TERMS AND
ASSUMPTION OF CONTRACTUAL DUTIES

In consideration of the County's foregoing assignment to the Assignee, the Assignee
hereby accepts the foregoing assignment, and agrees to assume all applicable contractual

BUS OPTIONS ASSIGNMENT AGREEMENT

King County, Fastern Contra Costa Transit Authority, and Proterra Oct15
Page 2 of 4



duties and responsibilities associated with the exercise of its right to purchase buses front
the Contractor via this Bus Options Assignment Agreement.

4. REVERSION OF OPTIONS

In the event the Assignee fails, within ninety (90) days from the date this Bus Options
Assignment Agreement is signed by all the Parties hereto, to exercise the right assigned
to it pursuant to this Bus Options Assignment Agreement to purchase from the Contractor
two (2) buses from the option quantity provided for in the Procurement Contract, the
unexercised options shall revert back to the County.

5. CONTRACTOR'S ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF AND CONSENT TO
ASSIGNMENT

The Contractor hereby acknowledges and consents to the County’s assignment to the
Assignee, pursuant to Seciion B2.19.01 of the Procurement Contract and the terms and
conditions of this Bus Options Assignment Agreement, of the right to purchase two (2)
buses of the option quantity of buses avallable to the County as provided for in the
Procurement Contract

6.  INDEMNIFICATION AND HOLD HARMIESS

Both the Assignee dnd the Contractor hereby agree to indemnify and hold harmless the
County, its elected officials, officers, employees, agents and representatives from any and
all claims, actions, judgments, liabilities, proceedings and costs, including reasonable
attorneys' fees and other costs of defense and damages, arising out of the assignment of
rights provided for in this Bus Options Assignment Agreement or in any. way resulting
from the Assignee's exercise of the bus purchase options, including any acts or omissions

associated therewith, whether contractual or otherwise, arising out of or related to the .
assignment provided for herein. :

i
1
i
i
i
1

1

BUS OPTIONS ASSIGNMENT AGREEMENT - _
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each of the Parties hereto accepts the terms and conditions
provided for herein and has caused this Assignment Agreement to be signed and executed
by a duly authorized representative.

ASSIGNOR:
KING COUNTY

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION
METRO TRANSIT DIVISION

By:

Kevin Desmond, General Manager

Date:

ASSIGNEE:

EASTERN CONTRA COSTA TRANSIT AUTHORITY

By:

Printed Name and Title:

. Date:

CONTRACTOR:

PROTERRA INC.

By:

Printed Name and Title:’ '

Date:

. j
BUS OPTIONS ASSIGNMENT AGREEMENT

King County, Eastern Contra Costa Transit Authority, and Proterra Octl5
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Agenda ltem 7e
DISCUSSION ITEM: 2016 Board Meeting Dates

Board of Directors Meeting

Wednesday December 16, 2015
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801 Wilbur Avenue, Antioch, CA 94509



TRI DELTA TRANSIT

Staff Report to ECCTA Board of Directors

Meeting Date:  December 16, 2015

Agenda Item: 2016 ECCTA Board of Director Meeting Dates
Agenda ltem #7e

- Q/
Lead Staff: Jeanne Krieg

The regular meeting date and time of the ECCTA Board of Directors is the 4t
Wednesday of each month at 4:00pm. The Board Chair has the authority to cancel any
Tri Delta Transit Board meeting if there is a lack of pressing agenda items or if
extenuating circumstances exist. As much notice as possible is given so board members
can plan accordingly.

Scheduled Consideration Staff Request

Meeting Date

November 23, | Thanksgiving Day is Combine the November &

2016 November 24" December meetings and
and Christmas Day is December conduct that meeting on

December 28, | 25" December 14™, 2016.

2016 New Year’s Day is January 1%

Staff Request

Combine the November and December 2016 board meetings and conduct that meeting on
December 14", 2016.

Agenda ltem #7e
Eastemn Contra Costa Transit Authority
Board of Direcfors

Meeting: December 16, 2015
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Agenda ltem 7f
ACTION ITEM: Independent Auditor’s Report for the year ended June 30, 2015
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Board of Directors Meeting
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801 Wilbur Avenue, Antioch, CA 94509




Tri Delta Transit

Staff Report to ECCTA Board of Directors

Meeting Date: December 16, 2015

Agenda Item: Independent Auditor’s Report for the year ended June 30, 2015
Agenda Item 7f

Lead Staff: Tom Harais, Chief Financial Officer

Approved: Jeanne Krieg, Chief Executive Office&&/

Background

ECCTA is required to have an annual certified fiscal audit conducted by an outside
independent firm.

Process

Per the contract between ECCTA and Maze & Associates, an audit of the fiscal year
ending June 30, 2015 was conducted.

Results

The Authority’s financial statements were found to fairly present the financial condition
of the Authority in accordance with GAAP standards.

There were no material findings or questioned costs.

The Authority was found to be compliant with the requirements of OMB circular A-133,
and the regulations regarding expenditures funded with Transportation Development Act
and the Public Transportation, Modernization of Service and Enhancement Account
funds.

Requested Action

Adopt Resolution #151216a accepting the Independent Auditor’s Report for the year
ended June 30, 2015.

Attached
e Proposed Resolution
e Independent Auditor’s Report

Agenda ltem 7f
Eastern Contra Costa Transit Authority
Board of Directors Meeting
December 16, 2015



TRI DELIA TRANSIT

Eastern Contra Costa Transit Authority
801 Witbur Avenue « Antioch, California 94509
Phone 925.754.6622 Fax 925.757.2530

A

Resolution 151216a accepts the EASTERN CONTRA COSTA TRANSIT AUTHORITY
Independent Auditor’s Report for the year ended June 30, 2015.

RESOLUTION #151216a
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

WHEREAS, ECCTA is required by PUC 99245 to have an annual certified fiscal audit
conducted by an outside entity; and

WHEREAS, the independent audit performed was designed to express an opinion on the FY
2014 financial statements and address current statutory and regulatory requirements in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by
the Comptroller General of the United States; and

WHEREAS, the Independent Auditor’s Report for the years ended June 30, 2015 shows no
significant issues,

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Directors of the Eastern Contra
Costa Transit Authority to adopt resolution #151216a accepting the Independent Auditor’s
Report.

PASSED AND ADOPTED THIS 16™ day of December 2015, by the following votes:

EASTERN CONTRA COSTA TRANSIT AUTHORITY

Ben Johnson, Chair Jeanne Krieg, CEO

AYES:

NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTENTIONS:
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Board of Directors of
Eastern Contra Costa Transit Authority
Auntioch, California

Report on Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying basic financial statements of Eastern Contra Costa Transit Authority
(Authority) as of and for the years ended June 30, 2015 and 2014, and the related notes to the financial
statements, which collectively comprise the Authority’s basic financial statements as listed in the Table of
Contents.

Muanagement’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
erTor.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted
our audits in accordance with anditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement,

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant fo the Authority’s preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order fo design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Anthority’s
internal confrol, Accordingly, we express no such opimion. -An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness-of significant accounting estimates made
by managerment, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for pur
audit opinions,

T 926.930.0002
Accountancy Corporation 7 926.930.0135
3478 Buskirk Avenus, Sults 215 1 . E maze@mazeassociates.com
Pleasant Hill, CA 94523 w mazeassociates.com




Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referrod to above present fairly, in all material respects the financial
position of the Authority as of June 30, 2015 and 2014, and changes in financial position and cash flows for
the years then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of Amerioca require that Management’s
Discussion and Analysis be presented to supplement the basic financial statements, Such information,
although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards
Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial
statements in an appropriate operational, economnic ot historical context. We have applied certain limited
procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of
prepating the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to
our inquiries, the basic financial staternents, and other knowledge we obtained during cur audit of the basic
financial statements. We do not express an opinion ot provide any assurance on the information because the
limited procedures do not provide ns with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide amy
- assurance.

Other Reporfing Required by Goverument Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated November 20,
2015, on our consideration of the Authority’s internal control over financial repoiting and on our tests of
its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our festing of internal control over financial
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control
over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Goverrment Auditing Standards in considering the Authority’s internal conirol over
financial reporting and compliance.

Hogp I

Pleasant Hill, California
November 20, 2015




Management’s Discussion and Analysis

This discussion and analysis of the Eastern Contra Costa Transit Authority’s financial performance
provides an overview of the Authority’s financial activities for Fiscal Year 2015 including comparisons to
prior fiscal years. This information should be considered in conjunction with the statements and notes
contained in the Financial Section.

Financial Highlights

» Total assets declined S1M vs. the previous fiscal year. A $1M increase in temporary cash
investments due to the receipt of PTMISEA funds in advance of expenditures on ralling stock
procurements was more than offset by an increase in the accumulated depreciation allowance. .
The depreciation increase was a result of the first full year of the provision applied to the
previous year’s Jarge bus purchase.

» Total liabilities increased in FY15 from $2.9M to $3.3M. The change represents $451 thousand
in excess TDA funds that will be returned 1o the County Local Transportation Fund upon audit
acceptance.

s In FY15 the Authority saw a slight decrease in program opérating revenues of $91 thousand
compared to FY14. This was congruent with the drop in fare revenues resulting from the
decrease in passenger trips provided.

¢ Program operating expenses were stable between FY14 and FY15, increasing by less than 1%.

* Non-operating revenues decreased $200 thousand in FY14. This was a result of a onetime gain
on sale of fixed assets in FY FYi4 of $218 thousand.

e The result: Net position decreased from $25.3M to $23.7M during FY15. This is in line with a
stable transit operation.

Overview of the Financial Statements

The Financial Section of this report presents the Authority’s financial statements inchuding the hasic
financial statements and the notes to those financial statements. It also includes other, supplemental
information in addition to the basic financial statements.

Basic Financial Statements

The Statement of Net Positlon presents information about the assets and liabilities and the difference
between the two as net position. The change in net position over time can indicate whether the
Authority’s financial position is improving or deteriorating.

The Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position indicates how net position has
changed during the fiscal year as well as compares operating revenues and operating expenses between
the current and prior, fiscal years. The operating revenues and expenses shown here are the financia!
activities of the Autherity related to the Authority’s mission of providing public transportation services
in Eastern Contra Costa County. The expenses and revenues reported include fares and advertising
revenues along with the cost of passenger services, administration of those services, services that have
been contracted out and depreciation of fixed assets. All other revenues and expenses not included
within these categories are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses.




The Statement of Cash Flows reports the inflow and outflow of cash at the Authority. Such activity is
classified into four major companents.

* Caosh flows from operating activities including transactions reported as components of operating
income in the statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net assets,

o (Cash flows from investing activities include interest and similar returns on funds invested while
held by the Authority.

o Cosh flows from non-capital financing activities includes operating grant funding received as well
a5 operating payments from third parties and non-operating items.

» Cash flows from capital and related financing activities come from the procurement of capital
assets and the proceeds of capital grants.

Notes to the Financial Statements

Immediately following basic the financial statements are various notes intended to provide additional
information that is essential for the reader to gain a full understanding of the information provided
within the financial statements.

Other Information
This section presents required supplementary information meeting GASB requirements.

Analysis of Basic Financial Statements

> Assets:
2015 2014 Change %
Current Assets $6,384 54,968 $1,416 29%
Met Capital Assets 20,696 23,190 (2,494) -11%
Total Assets: 527,080 528,158 (51,078) -A%

The 29% increase in current assets from FY2014 to FY2015 was the result of the Authority receiving
PTMISEA funds for procurement of 20 fixed route replacement buses in advance of the procurement.

The 11% decrease in net capital assets in FY2015 from FY2014 was due to FY2015 being the first full year
of depreciation for the twenty five new, fixed route buses placed into service during 2014 where the
half-year convention for depreciation was appropriately to the first year in service.

Rolling stock and Land & Structures continue to comgrise the majority of the Authority’s capital assets.



NET CAPITAL ASSETS
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» Liabilities:

2015 2014 Change %
Current Liabilities 83,058 $2,633 5425 16%
Non-Current Liabilities 285 250 35 14%
Total Liabilities: 53,343 $2,883 5460 16%

There is $451 thousand in TDA operating funds for FY15 accrued in Current Liabilities to be returned to
the Contra Costa County LTF upon completion of the FY15 audit. These are TDA operating funds
received from FY15 TDA allocations in excess of operating expenditures at YE FY15.

The $35 thousand increase in non-current liabilities represents the annual PERB provision for ECCTA's
health care in retirement plan.




>  Net Position:

The Authority’s net position decreased from $25M atyear end FY2014 to $24M at June 30" 2015 as a
result of the changes in assets and liahilities discussed above.

> Program Operating Revenue:

The Authority received $91 thousand fess in operating revenues in FY15 compared to FY14. There was &
decrease in gross fare revenue proportional to the decrease in ridership.

> Program Operating Expense:

As previously outlined, the Authority incurred level operating expenses during the two years reviewed
here. There were significant comparative reductions in the cost of materials and supplies ($371
thousand) and salaries and benefits {$98 thousand) for FY15 that were offset by equal increases in
purchased transportation {5163 thousand) and depreciation ($351 thousand) when compared to FYi4,

* The comparative differential cost in materials and supplies can be attributed to lower fuel costs.
Overall fuel consumption was similar between the two years. The authority procures fuel on the
open market without hedging or similar fuel price contro! strategies.

» The Authority had $31 less in Salaries and Benefits costs in FY15 vs, FY14 with delays in filling
open positions from turnover and a reduction in overtime costs of 20% year-to-year. In
addition, ECCTA saved $82 thousand in medical insurance costs in FY15 by changing plans in
December of 2014.

» The increase in Purchased Transportation Expenses from FY14 to FY15 reflects the annual
increase i the contractual rates for the fixed and hourly costs of this service, offset by a 4,434
reduction in billable hours compared to FY14. The reduced hours were a result of fixed route
schedule changes and more efficient scheduling of paratransit services.

Program Operating Expenses

{Sthousdnds)

2015 2014 Change %
Purchased Transportation 511,311 $11,148 $163 1%
Labor & Fringe Benefits 3,785 3,883 (98) -3%
Materials & Supplies 3,175 3,546 {371) -10%
_ Services 796 ' 789 7 1%
Casualty & Liability 412 450 (38} -8%
Other 628 . 622 6 1%
Depreciation 3,197 2,846 351 i2%
Total Operating Cost " $23,304 $23,284 520 0%



COMPARATIVE OPERATING EXPENSES
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»  Nen-Operating Revenues/(Expenses):

The total non-operating funds that the Authority received in FY15 were 520 thousand less than in FY14,
The decline in state grant revenues was offset with an increase in local grant funding.

Avallable STA funds continued to decline as anticipated due to changes in state law.

The authority received an additional $57 thousand in Measure J funding and a $151 thousand increase
in BART “feeder” hus funding in FY15 compared to FY14.

Non-Operating Funds by Source

{Sthousands}

2015 2014 Change %
Federal Funds 50 50 S0 0%
TDA Funds 10,887 10,888 (1) 0%
STA Funds 1,640 1,867 (227} -12%
Measure ] Funding 1,193 1,136 57 5%
BART "feeder bus" Funds 2,268 2,117 151 7%
RM2 funds 532 532 0 0%
Total Operating Funds Received $16,520 $16,540 ($20) 0%

NON-OPERATING FUNDS BY SOURCE EXPENDED ON OPERATIONS
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State sales tax based operating funds, (Transportation Development Act and State Transit Assistance
Funds - TDA & 5TA), continue to grow as a comparative source of operating funds for the authority as
the following chart shows. STA funds have traditionally been the source that BART has drawn upon 1o
fund the interagency arrangement for express bus funding, identified as “feeder bus funds” elsewhere,

This dependency on state fund saurces for operating revenues, while necessary due to the funding rules
for each of the various sources, creates a risk for ECCTA, and all Bay Area transit operators should there
be a decline in retail and/or sales dollars and thus proportional fund revenue generated.

Sources of Operating Revenue by Year
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The Authority has financed any annual operating fund shartages by maintaining a significant reserve of
unallocated state funds by not drawing all available state funds in any given year when possible and
allowing the excess to carryovar as a reserve. Those reserves were heavily depleted during the national
economic downturn of several years ago and are slowly being rebuilt by the Authority. There remains
work to be done in this area if the Authority wishes to return {0 using prior year funds accumulated for
the current year and leaving the current year funds generation is a reserve going forward.

ECCTA Unallocated State Funds Balance

YE June 30th
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
TDA Funds $ 1,200 $ 1810 % 3,028 $ 2,571 $ 3,827 $ 2,544
STA Funds 89 128 15 470 3 456

Total "reserves" $ 3,304 $ 3,052 % 5,054 $ 5,053 $ 5841 $ 5,010



> Capital Activity:

The Authority expended $721 thousand on capital projects in FY15 and disposed of $267 thousand
worth of fully depreciated medical vans along with one staff vehicle. Half of the capital funds expended
were for the replacement of six med vans. The rest were expended on a system wide route redesign
project, a solar emergency backup project and work in progress for the Antioch Park and Ride design.
There were a couple of smaller, capital activities during FY15 involving less than $20 thousand each.

ECCTA entered into a contract for the purchase of 25 replacement fixed route buses with Gillig during
the fiscal year. Delivery (and application of funds) is not anticipated until the fall of calendar year 2016. .

The Authority anticipates that adequate capital funding will be available over the longer horizon such as
to allow for necessary rolling stock replacement and capitalized facility maintenance activities, Capital
projects currently in progress are fully funded. Future funding for construction of park and ride facilities
or any capital expenditure for expansion of service would be outside of such funding and are
constrained by regional policies.

» Operational Considerations

During FY15, ECCTA experienced a decrease of 1% in fixed route ridership compared to FY14 as gasoline
prices sagged 1o a decade low, incentivizing people to drive rather than take the bus. Paratransit
ridership increased once again, but only by 2%. The [ower fuel prices also resulted in lower operating
costs for the Authority.

Tri Delta Transit's system efficiency continued to improve as measured in total passenger trips provided
and the number of passengers carried per revenue hour of service and the cost of each passenger trip.

Growing demand for paratransit services — at a cost six times more on a subsidized per passenger trip
basis {$5 FR vs $31 DR, net of fares) than a fixed route trip due to the nature of DR service - continues to
pressure the Authority’s efforts to hold growth in operational costs to any increase in the services
provided. The chart below indicates thal ECCTA has done well in this discipline.

Operational Efficiency

2015 2014 Change %

Total FR passenger trips 2,806 2,832 -91 1%
FR passengers/rev hr i9.2 19.0 02 1%
; Scost/passenger trip §5.54 48558  -50.04 -1%
Total DR passenger trips 134 131 3 2%
DR passengers/rev hr 2.0 2.0 00 0%
Scostfpassenger trip $34.18 $35.25 -51.07 -3%
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» Subsequent Events

The lack of long term program commitments for future fund revenue sources remains a concern to the
Authority. This applies to both capital and operating funds although, operating is the more pressing
concern as it is with afl of the other small operators in the Bay Area.

Overall, avaitable funding has historically increased, Bul not necessarily at the same rate as costs. There
are no guarantees of growth in future funding going forward absent long range funding programs from
the funding agencies; federal, state and local. Operational revenue outside of public funds —fares,
advertising and other ~ remains a minor compenent of public transit revenues.

As the regional body overseeing more than $0% of the funding that ECCTA receives, the policies of the
Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC) have a material impact on the funds available to the
Authority.

The Autharity will continue to emphasize operational efficiencies in accordance with the first precept of
the Autharity’s mission statement:

“To provide safe, reliable, friendly, high quality and economical
transportation service to the Eostern Contrg Costa community.”

Important concerns related to the Authorities operations remain:

+ The amount of funding available to provide public transit services.

» The paratransit eligible population of the Authority’s service area growing and driving increased
the demands for paratransit services

‘Requests for Information

This financial report was created to pravide citizens, taxpayers, as well as the Authority’s customers and
creditors with a general cverview of the Authority’s finances. It is designed to demonstrate agency
accountability for appropriate use of public funds that the Authority receives. Any questions or requests
for additional information can be made to:

The Eastern Contra Costa Transit Authority
Attn: CFO

801 Wilbur Avenue

Antioch, CA 94550

(925} 754-6622

comment@eccta.org

Copies of this report are available online: http://www.trideltatransit.com/public.aspx
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EASTERN CONTRA COSTA TRANSIT AUTHORITY
STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION

JUNE 30, 2015 AND 2014
2015 2014
ASSETS
Current Assets
Unrestricted assets:
Cash and equivalents (Note 3) $3,187,470 $3,140,136
Operating assistance receivable 425,283 379,119
Capital grants receivable 22,217 147,172
Accounts receivable 93,533 142,932
Maintenance inventories and supplies, at cost 681,935 682,945
‘Total unrestricted assets 4,410,438 4,462,304
Resiricted cash and equivalents (Note 3):
PTMISEA reserves (Note §) 1,604,912 333,372
CTSGP reserves ) 190,003 142,372
LCTOP reserves ‘ 178,646
Total restricted assets 1,973,561 475,744
Total Current Assets 6,383,999 4,968,048
Non-Current Assets
Capital assets (Note 4):
Non-depreciable 2,456,985 2,456,985
Depreciable, net of accumulated depreclation 18,238,675 20,733,049
Total Non-Current Asscts - 20,695,660 23,150,034
Total Assets 27,079,659 28,158,082
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Accounis payable 2,675,440 2,233,709
Accrued lighilities 378,639 399,300
Total Current Liabilities 3,058,079 2,633,009
Non-Current Ligbilities
Other Post Employment Benefit QObligation (Note 10C) 285,000 250,000
Total Liabilities 3,343,079 2,883,009
NET POSITION (Note 2G3)
Net investment in capital assets 20,695,660 23,190,034
Resiricted for;
PTMISEA projects 1,604,912 333,372
CTSGP projects 190,003 142,372
LCTOP operations ' 178,646
Unrestricted 1,067,359 1,609,295
Net Position $23,736,580 $25,275,073

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements
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PROGRAM OPERATING REVENUES

EASTERN CONTRA COSTA TRANSIT AUTHORITY
STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

Pagsenger fares

Other operating income

Total Program‘Op erating Revenues

PROGRAM OPERATING EXPENSES
Purchased transportation (Note 12)

Materials and supplies
Salaries and benefits

Services

Casualty and liability insurance

Utilities
Other

Depreciation (Note 4)

Total Program Operating Expenses
PROGRAM OPERATING LGSS

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

State grant revenues
I.ocal grant revenues

Non-transportation revenues
Gain (Loss) on sale of capital asset

Net Non-Operating Revenues, Before
Capital Contributions {Grants)

Capital Contributions (Grants)

Net Non-Operating Revenues and Capital

CHANGE IN NET POSITION

NET POSITION AT BEGINNING OF YEAR
NET POSITION AT END OF YEAR

Contributions

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 AND 2014

2015 2014
$3,246,672 $3,358,076
335,853 314,780
3,582,505 3,673,756
11,310,882 11,147,718
3,175,222 3,545,858
3,784,585 3,883,373
796,231 789,577
412,446 450,444
246,878 223,601
380,303 398,209
3,197,098 2,845,740
23,304,145 23,284,520
(19,721,620) (19,610,764)
12,526,651 12,755,241
3,993,516 4,784,390
5,139 7,643
(784) 217,750
16,524,522 16,765,024
1,658,605 569,372
18,183,127 17,334,396
(1,538,493) (2,276,368)
25,275,073 27,551,441
$23,736,580 $25,275,073

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements




EASTERN CONTRA COSTA TRANSIT AUTHORITY

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 AND 2014

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash received from passenger fares
Cash received from operations - other
Cash payments for purchased transportation
Payments to and on behalf of employees
Payments to suppliers for goods and services

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Investment income received

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
State operating grants
Local grants
Other

Net cash provided by noncapital and financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM CAFITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Capital contributions received
Proceeds from sale of capital assets
Purchase of capital assets

Net cash provided (used) by capital and related financing activities
NET CASHFLOWS

CASH AND INVESTMENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH AND INVESTMENTS AT END OF YEAR

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING LOSS TO NET CASH
PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Operating loss
Depreciation sxpense
Change in assets and liabilities:
Other receivables .
Maintenance inventories and supplies
Accounts payable
Accrued labilities
Other post employment benefit obligation

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

2015 2014
$3,296,071 $3,367,135
335,853 314,780
(11,310,882) (11,147,718)
(3,749,585) (3,848,373)
(4,585,500) (8,001,654)
(16,014,043) (19,315,870)
5,139 6,449
12,651,606 13,266,815
3,947,352 6,660,742
218,944
16,598,958 20,146,501
160,788 172,991
17,887
(721,395) (181,203)
(542,720) (8,212)
47,334 828,868
3,140,136 2,311,268
$3,187,470 $3,140,136
(19,721,620) (19,610,764)
3,197,008 2,845,740
49,399 8,159
1,010 15,834
445,731 (2,626,694)
(20,661) 16,855
35,000 35,000
($16,014,043) ($19,315,870)

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements
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EASTERN CONTRA COSTA TRANSIT AUTHORITY
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Years Ended June 30, 2015 and 2014

NOTE 1 - GENERAL

The Eastern Contra Costa Transit Authority (Authority), also known as Tri Delta Transit, was
created August 3, 1976 under a joint exercise of powers agreement between the cities of Antioch,
Pittsburg, Brentwood, and Contra Costa County, for the purpose of meeting the public
transportation needs in Eastern Contra Costa County. The Authority is governed by a board of
Directors composed of representatives of the member jurisdictions. The joint exercise of powers
agreement was amended on April 26, 2000 to include the recently incorporated City of Oakley.

The Authority’s reporting entity includes all activities of the Authority.

|NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES |

The following is a summary of significant accounting policies of the Authority, which conform
with generally accepted accounting principles applicable to governments in the United States of
America.

A, Enterprise Fund Accounting

The Authority is accounted for as an enterprise fund. This fund is a set of self-balancing accounts,
which comprise its assets and deferred outilows, liabilities and deferred inflows, net position,
revenues and expenses.

B. Basis of Accounting

Basis of accounting refers to when revenues and expenses are recognized. The Authority is
accounted for using the accrual basis of accounting, under which revenues are recognized when
they are earned and expenses are recognized when they are incurred.

Non-exchange transactions, in which the Authority gives or receives value without directly
receiving or giving equal value in exchange, include taxes, grants, entitlements, and donations.
On an accrual basis, revenue from grants, entitlements, and donations is recognized in the fiscal
year in which all eligibility requirements have been satisfied.

C. Basis of Presentation
The Anthority’s Basic Financial Statements are prepared in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America. The Government Accounting Standards Board

is the acknowledged standard seiting body for establishing accounting and financial reporting
standards followed by governmental ontities in the U.S.A.
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EASTERN CONTRA COSTA TRANSIT AUTHORITY
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Years Ended June 30, 2015 and 2014

INOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) l

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods
in connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operation, The principal operating
reverues of the Authority are charges to customers for farebox revenues. The Authority’s
operating revenues, such as charges for services, result from exchange transactions associated with
the principal activity of the Authority. Operating expenses for enterprise finds include the cost of
sales and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on assets. All revennes and expenses
not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses.

Cash Eqidvalents

The Authority considers all highly liquid investments with a maturity of three months or less
when purchased to be cash equivalents.

Risk Management

The Authority requires ils operations contractor, First Traosit, Inc.,, to provide general liability
coverage. First Transit provides insurance with primary coverage of $20,000,000 in aggregate. In
addition, the Authority is insured for premises and operational bodily injury and property damage
up to a limit of $12,100,000, with a deductible of $10,000.

Compensated Absences

Full-time permanent employees are granted personal time off (PTO) benefits in varying amounts to
specified maximums, depending on their tenure with the Authority. PTO accrues to employees to
specified maximums after six months of service. The estimated current portion of the liability for
PTO benefits is recorded as an expenditure with a corresponding liability.

Net Position
Net Position is the excess of all the Authority’s assets and deferred outflows over all its liabilities
and deferred inflows. Net Position are divided into three captions and apply only to Net Position as

described below:

Net Invesiment in Capital Assets describes the portion of Net Position which is represented by the
current net book value of the Authority’s capital assets.

Restricted describes the portion of Net Position which is restricted as to use by the terms and
conditions of agreements with outside parties, governmental regulations, laws, or other
restrictions which the Authority cannot unilaterally alter. The Authority’s Restricted Net Posmon
is for unexpended funds received from PTMISEA, CTSGP and LCTOP.

Unrestricted describes the portion of Net Position which is not restricted to use.
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EASTERN CONTRA COSTA TRANSIT AUTHORITY
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Years Ended June 30, 2015 and 2014

LNOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) I

H

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles (GAAP) requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the
date of the financial statements and the reporfed amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period, Actual resulfs could differ from those estimates.

Deferred Inflow/Outflow of Resourcey

In addition to assets, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for
deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of
resources, represents a consumption of net: position or fund balance that applies to a future
period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until
then.

In addition to lizbilities, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for
deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of
resources, represents an acquisition of net position or fund balance that applies to a future
period(s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time.

New Accounting Pronouncements
The Authority has implemented the requirements of the following GASB Pronotncements:

GASB Statement No. 68 —The primary objective of this Statement is to improve accounting and
financial reporting by state and local governments for pensions. This Statement establishes
standards for measuring and recognizing liabilities, deferred outflows of resources, and deferred
inflows of resources, and expense/expenditures. For defined benefit pensions, this Statement
identifies the methods and assumptions that should be used to project benefit payments, discount
projected benefit payments to their actvarial present value, and atiribute that present value to
periods of employee service. This Statement had no impact on the Authority’s financial
statements.
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EASTERN CONTRA COSTA TRANSIT AUTHORITY
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Years Ended June 30, 2015 and 2014

[NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICTES (Continued) _|

GASB Statement No. 69 - This Statement establishes accounting and financial reporting
standards related to government combinations and disposals of governiment operations. As used
in this Statement, the term government combinations includes a variety of transactions referred to
ag mergers, acquisitions, and transfers of operations. The distinction between a government
merger and a government acquisition is based upon whether an exchange of significant
consideration is present within the combination fransaction. Government mergers include
combinations of legally separate entities without the exchange of significant consideration. This
Statement requires the use of carrying values to measure the assets and liabilities in a government
merger. Conversely, government acquisitions are transactions in which a government acquires
another entity, or its operations, in exchange for significant consideration. This Statement
requires measurements of assets acquired and liabilities assumed generally to be based upon their
acquisition values. This Statement also provides guidance for transfers of operations that do not
constitute entire legally separate entities and in which no significant consideration is exchanged.
This Statement defines the term operations for purposes of determining the applicability of this
Statement and requires the use of carrying values to measure the assets and liabilities in a transfer
of operations. A disposal of a government’s operations results in the removal of specific activities
of a government. This Statement provides accounting and financial reporting guidance for
disposals of government operations that have been transferred or sold. This Statement requires
disclosures to be made about government combinations and disposals of government operations
to enable financial statement users fo evaluate the nature and financial effects of those
transactions. This Statement had no impact on the Authority’s financial statements.

GASB Statement No. ~ 71~ The objective of this Statement is fo address an issue regarding
application of the transition provisions of Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting
for Pensions. The issue relates to amounts associated with contributions, if any, made by a state
-or local government employer or non-employer contributing entity to a defined benefit pension.
plan after the measarement date of the government’s beginning net pension liability. This
Statement had no impact on the Authority’s financial statements.
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EASTERN CONTRA COSTA TRANSIT AUTHORITY
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Years Ended June 30,2015 and 2014

|NOTE 3 - CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS |

California Law requires banks and savings and loan institutions to pledge government securities
with a market value of 110% of the Authority’s cash on deposit, or first trust deed mortgage notes
with a market value of 150% of the deposit, as collateral for these deposits. Under California
Law this collateral is held in a separate investment pool by another institution in the Authority’s
name and places the Authority ahead of genexal creditors of the institution.

A. Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Authority’s unrestricted cash consists of time and demand deposits and petty cash held at the
Authority’s administrative office.

The Authority’s restricted assets, which consist of certificates of deposit with Bank of Agriculture
and Commerce, are carried at fair value, as required by generally accepted accounting principles.
The Authority adjusts the carrying value of its investments to reflect their fair value at each fiscal
year end, and it includes the effects of these adjustments in income for that fiscal year.

Cash and cash equivalents for the years ended June 30, 2015 and 2014 consisted of the following;:

2015 2014
Unrestricted cash;
Deposits in financial institutions $3,186,920 $3,139,548
Cash on hand at Authority _ 550 588
Total unrestricted cash and equivalents 3,187,470 3,140,136
Restricted - certificates of deposit:
PTMISEA reserve 1,604,912 333,372
CT'SGP reserve 190,003 142,372
LCTOP reserve 178,646
Total restricted cash and equivalents 1,973,561 475,744
Total Cash and Equivalents $5,161,031 $3,615,880

B. PTMISEA Reserve

The Public Transportation, Modernization, Improvement and Service Enhancement Account
(PTMISEA) is one of the programs included in Proposition 1B, the Highway Safety, Traffic
Reduction, Air Quality and Port Security Bond Act, passed by voters in November 2006 (see
Note 8). The Authority is applying these funds to eligible capital expenditures for bus
replacements.
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EASTERN CONTRA COSTA TRANSIT AUTHORITY
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Years Ended June 30, 2015 and 2014

[NOTE 3 - CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Continued) |

C

CTSGP Reserve

The California Transit Security Grant Program (CTSGP) California Transit Assistance Fund is
another program included in Proposition 1B, the Highway Safety, Traffic Reduction, Air Quality
and Port Security Bond Act, passed by voters in November 2006. The Authority is applying
thegse funds to eligible capital expenditures for interoperable communications and physical
security enhancement equipment.

LCTOP Operations

The Low Carbon Transit Operations Program(I.CTOP) is one of several programs that are part of
the Transit, Affordable Housing, and Sustainable Communities Program established by the
California Legislature in 2014 by Senate Bill 862. The LCTOP was created to provide operating
and capital assistance for transit agencies to reduce greenhouse gas emission and improve
mobility, with a priority on serving disadvantaged comnunities. LCTOP was passed and adopted
by the Authority in Jaguary 2015, The Aunthority is applying these funds to enhance service on
Route 201 (Concord, CA).

NOTE 4 — CAPITAL ASSETS |

Capital assets of the Authority consist of land, transit and service vehicles, buildings and
improvements, and equipment. Capital assets are recorded at cost and depreciated over their
estimated useful lives. The Authority’s policy is to capitalize all assets when costs exceed $5,000.

Depreciation of capital assets in service is provided using the straight line method which means the
cost of the asset is divided by its expected useful life in years and the resuit is charged to expense
each year unti! the asset is fully depreciated. The Authority has assigned the useful lives as follows:

Building and improvements 5-30 years
Transit vehicles 4-14 years
Shop, office and other equipment 5-10 years

20




EASTERN CONTRA COSTA TRANSIT AUTHORITY

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Years Ended June 30, 2015 and 2014

|NOTE 4 - CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued) |

A, Capital Asset Activity

Capital assets activity during fiscal year ended June 30, 2015 is as follows:

Balance Balance
June 30, 2014 Additions Retirements June 30, 2015
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land $2,456,985 $2.456,985
Total capital assets not being depreciated 2,456,985 2,456,985
Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings and improvemerts 12,715,138 $283,357 12,998,495
Transit vehicles 28,827,388 355,002 ($250,953) 28,931,437
Equipment 3,606,210 83,036 {16,391) 3,672,855
Total capital asssts being depreciated 45,148,736 721,395 (267,344) 45,602,787
Less accumulated depreciation for;
Buildings and improvements 6,509,093 575,557 7,084,650
Transit vehicles 14,842,073 2,067,747 (233,922) 16,675,898
Equipment 3,064,521 553,794 (14,751) 3,603,564
Total zccumulated depreciation 24,415,687 3,197,008 (248,673) 27,364,112
Total depreciable assets 20,733,049 (2,475,703) (18,671) - 18,238,675
Capital assets, net $23,190,034 ($2,475,703) ($18.671) $20,695.660
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EASTERN CONTRA COSTA TRANSIT AUTHORITY
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Years Ended June 30, 2015 and 2014

NOTE 4 — CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued) |

Capital assets activity during fiscal year ended June 30, 2014 is as follows:

Balance Balance
June 30, 2013 Additions Retirementis June 30, 2014
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land $2,445,157 $11,828 $2,456,985
Total capital assefs not being depreciated 2,445,157 11,828 2,456,985
Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings and improvements 12,715,138 : 12,715,138
Transit vohicles 39,128,016 105,572 {$10,406,200) 28,827,388
Equipment o ‘ 3,542,407 63,803 3,606,210
Total capital assets being depreciated 535,385,561 169,375 (10,406,200) 45,148,736
Less accumulated depreciation for: '
Buildings and improvements 5,935,262 573,831 6,508,093
Transit vehicles 23,545,964 1,702,309 (10,406,200) 14,842,073
Equipment 2,494,921 569,600 3,064,521
Total accumulated depreciation 31,976,147 2,845,740 {10,406,200) 24,415,687
Total depreciable assets 23,409,414 {2,676,365) 20,733,049
Capital assets, net $25,854,571 ($2,664,537) $23,190,034

B. Capital Contributions

The Authority has grant contracts with the U.S. Department of Transportation through the Federal
Transit Administration for certain capital improvements. Federal Transit Administration funds
are used to replace and improve the Authority’s buses and transit facilities. The Authority also
has contracts under the Transportation Development Act of 1971 (TDA) and State Transit
Assistance (STA) funds, which arc used to match Federal Transit Administration grants or to
fund fransit improvement projects. Capital funding provided under government grants is
considered earned as the allowable expenditures are incurred.

Grants for capital assets acquisition and facility development and rehabilitation are reported in the

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position, after non-operating revenues and
expenses as capital contributions.
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EASTERN CONTRA COSTA TRANSIT AUTHORITY
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Years Ended June 30, 2015 and 2014

NOTE 5 — OPERATING GRANTS

The Authority records operating assistance grants as revenue when eatned.
A, TDAand STA Operating Assistance

The Authority receives allocations of local transportation funds pursuant to the Transportation
Development Act of 1971 and State Transit Assistance (STA) funds. These funds are generated
within Contra Costa County and are allocated based on annual claims filed by the Authority and
approved by the Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC). Generally, the maximum annual
TDA assistance the Authority can receive is limited to its actnal operating costs (excluding
depreciation) less fare revernes received and other local operating assistance (including interest
income).

For the years ended June 30, 2015 and 2014, the maximum TDA operating assistance eligibility
was $11,180,477 and $10,431,169, respectively. During the year ended June 30, 2015, the TDA
operating funds received was $10,857,377 resulting in an underpayment by MTC of $323,100. The
Authority increased the TDA Operating Receivable at June 30, 2015 in the amount of the deficit
(see Note 9). .

B.  Inter Operator Agreements

The Authority receives funding through an arrangement with Bay Area Rapid Transit (BART) for
operating assistance applied to certain "feeder bus" services to the Pittsburg/Bay Point BART
station. The Authority took over and incorporated such services from BART in 1997 (as detailed in
the schedule below).

C.  Regionod Measure 2 Fundy

On March 2, 2004, voters passed Regional Measure 2 (RM2), raising the foll on the seven State-
owned toll bridges in the San Francisco Bay Area by $1.00. This extra dollar is fo fund various
transportation projects within the region that have been determined to reduce congestion or to make
improvements to travel in the toll bridge corridors, as identified in SB 916 (Chapter 715, Statutes of
2004). Specifically, RM2 establishes the Regional Traffic Relief Plan and identifies specific transit
operating assistance and capital projects and programs eligible to receive RM2 fumding. The Bay
Area Toll Authority (BATA) is responsible for the collection of the bridge tolls and MTC is
responsible for administering the RM2 Program. The Authority is an eligible recipient for RM2
fiunds and received $531,835 and $531,835 in RM2 funding during fiscal years ended June 30, 2015
and 2014, respectively, The Authority utilized the RM2 funds as operating assistance on a specific,
express bus route per the program's requirements.
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EASTERN CONTRA COSTA TRANSIT AUTHORITY
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Years Ended June 30, 2015 and 2014

NOTE 5 — OPERATING GRANTS (Continued) |

Operating assistance for the years ended June 30 are summarized as follows:

2015 2014

Federal Transit Administration
Transportation Development Act $10,886,823 $10,888,499
State Transit Assistance 1,639,828 1,866,742
Inter-operator agreements (BART) 2,267,902 2,117,053
Measure J 1,193,779 1,135,502
Regional Measure 2 531,835 531,835

Total- $16,520,167 $16,539,631

NOTE 6 - CAPITAL GRANTS |

The Authority has received grants from the Federal Transit Administration (FTA) and granis of
local trangportation funds pursuant to the Transportation Development Act of 1971 (TDA) for the
purchase of buses, facility improvements, furniture and fixtures, and supporting equipment.

Expenditures of capital grant fonds are allocated based on annual claims filed by the Authority and
approved by the MTC. The Authority's management believes that the remaining grants available
will be approved in full. These grants (excluding Measure ), less the related amortization, are

included in capital contributions.

The Authority's capital contributions for the years ended June 30, 2015 and 2014 are as follows:

2015 2014
U.S. Department of Transportation grant awards $154,656 $134,328
Less: funds vsed for operating costs
Sub-total: 154,656 134,328
State grants 31,554 5,255
Other 59,338 3,587
Total Capital Contributions $245,948 $147,170
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EASTERN CONTRA COSTA TRANSIT AUTHORITY
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Years Ended June 30, 2015 and 2014

NOTE 7 - MEASURE J I

In November 2004, Conira Costa County voters approved Measure J which provided for the
continuation of a County half-cent transportation sales tax for 25 more years beyond the original
expiration date of 2009 (Measure C). Measure J funding is administered by the Contra Costa
Transportation Authority (CCTA). The Authority records Contra Costa County Measure J grants
for operations and for capital projects as revenue and capital contributions, respectively, as received.

The Authority is an eligible recipient of Measure J funds and received $1,314,677 and $1,251,376
in Measure J operating assistance during fiscal years ended June 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively, of
which $1,193,779 and $1,135,502, respectively, were applied to specific fixed route and para-
transit bus services per CCTA's approved program. The remaining amount of $120,898 and
$115,874 of Measure J funds for 2015 and 2014, respectively, were "passed through" to the Central
Confra Costa Transit Authority (CCCTA) according to an inter-operator agreement that all three
agencies entered info to provide Countywide express bus services.

NOTE 8 — PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION MODERNIZATION IMPROVEMENT AND SERVICE
ENHANCEMENT ACCOUNT ‘

The Public Transportation, Modernization, Improvement and Service Enhancement Account
(PTMISEA) is one of the programs included in Proposition 1B, the Highway Safefy, Traffic
Reduction, Air Quality and Port Security Bond Act, passed by voters in November 2006. During
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010, the Authority applied for and received $1,802,885 for the
procurement of California Air Resource Board (CARB) compliant diesel buses. During the yeat
ended June 30, 2012, the Authority applied for and received $2,922,016. During the year ended
June 30, 2014, the Authority received $327,019. During the year ended June 30, 2015, the
Authority received $1,277,391.
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NOTE 8 — PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION MODERNIZATION IMPROVEMENT AND SERVICE
ENHANCEMENT ACCOUNT (Continued)

The activity during the last five fiscal years was as follows:

PTMISEA beginning balance
PTMISEA Funds Received
Interest Ramed

Total Revenues

Bxpenditures incurred:
Buses
Shelters

Total Expenditures

Unexpended funds at year end

PTMISEA. beginning balance
PTMISEA Funds Received
Interest Earned

‘Total Revenues

Expenditures incurred:
Buses
Shelters

Total Expenditures

Unexpended funds at year end

2015 2014 2013
$333,372 $31,900 $2,953,894
1,277,391 327,019

767 265 13,911

1,611,530 359,193 2,967,805

(2,935,896)

(6,618) (25,821) L
(6,618) (25,821) (2,935,896)
$1,604,012 $333,372 $31,909

2012 2011
$924,964 $1,087,792
2,922,016

1,680 5,814

3,848,660 1,093,606

(894,766)
(168,642)
(894,766) (168,642)
$2,953,804 $924,964

Of the $1,802,885 in PEMISEA funds received during fiscal year ended June 30, 2010, $882,885
was matched with federal and other funds to procure replacement buses in the normal rotation of
revenue vehicle replacement in the near future. The remaining $200,000 are part of the MTC
Administered Lifeline project and has been matched with local funds to purchase and install bus
shelters as part of the Authority’s Bus Shelters and Amenities for Communities of Concern

project.
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NOTE 9 - TDA RECEIVABLE/PAYABLE I

The Authority applies for TDA funds for operating purposes prior to the start of each fiscal year. The
application is based on the Authority's annual budget and thus contains an estimate of the Authority's
annual operating expenditures and revenues during the next fiscal year. After completion of the
annual audit whereby any unapplied funds or funding shortfalls are determined, the Authority either

_returns TDA funds in excess of those used during the fiscal year or applies for additional TDA
funding for the prior fiscal year to make up the shortfall.

A TDA Receivable represents the deficit of TDA operations grants received by the Authority over
the allowed expenditures, any deficit amounts are payable to the Authority. A TDA Payable
represents the surplus of TDA operations grants received by the Authority over the allowed
expenditures. Such surpluses must be retumed to the County Local Transportation Fund. The
amount of TDA payable or receivable at year end is a provision that the Anthority makes to request
or return such TDA funds. At the end of fiscal year ended June 30, 2015, the Authority was still
owed from MTC the amount of $323,100 in TDA Operating Funds revenues. As a result, the
Authority increased its TDA Operating receivable by the amount of the deficit.

For the years ended June 30, 2015 and 2014, the maximum TDA operating assistance eligible was
$11,180,477 and $10,431,169, respectively. The actual TDA operating funds received for the years
ended June 30, 2015 and 2014 were $10,857,377 and $10,659,834, respectively, The TDA
Receivable and Payable for the years ended June 2015 and 2014, respectively, were $323,100 and
$228,665, respectively, and were calculated as follows:

2015 2014
TDA. operating assistance allowable $11,180,477 $10,431,169
Actual TDA operafing assistance received (10,857,377) (10,659,834)
{Payable) Receivable ' $323,100 ($228,665)

NOTE 10 —EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PLANS I

The Authority offers two retirement plans - a 401(a) and a 457(b) plan. The plans are optional. The
Authority also offers Other Post Employment Benefits (OPEB).

A. Employees’ Retirement Plan

The Authority offers a 401(a) defined contribution pension plan, administered by the Financial
Decision group, through Charles Schwab. All fulltime employees are eligible for this voluntary
program upon suecessful completion of his or her probation, In order to participate in this voluntary
program, an employee must participate in the 457(b) deferred compensation plan (see note 10B), and
contribute a minimum of 4% of his or her gross salaty, up to a maximum of 25%, or the federally
allowed maximum amount of his or her gross compensation, whichever is less.
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NOTE 10 - EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PLANS (Continued) |

The Authority makes contributions to the 401(a) plan for each participant depending on the
participant’s years of service with the Authority as follows:

Less than 10 years 12% of gross salary
10-20 years 13% of gross salary
20-30 years 14% of gross salary
More than 30 years 15% of gross salary

Any changes to the plan and/or contribution requirements must be approved by the Authority’s
Board of Directors, During fiscal year ended June 30, 2015, the Authority contributed $313,568 to
the 401(a) plan on behalf of'its participants,

B. Deferred Compensation Plan

The Authority employees may defer a portion of their compensation under an Authority sponsored
Deferred Compensation Plan, administered by ICMA, created in accordance with Internal Revenue
Code Section 457. Under this plan, participants are not taxed on the deferred portion of their
compensation until distributed to them; distributions may be made only at termination, retirement,
death or in an emergency as defined by the Plan.

The laws governing deferred compensation plan assets require plan assets to be held by a Trust for
the exclusive bensfit of plan participants and their beneficiaries. Since the assets held under these
plans are not the Authority’s property and are not subject to Authority conirol, they have been
excluded from these financial statements.

C Other Post Employment Benefits (OPEB)

The Authority provides postretiroment health care benefits to full time administrative employees who
retire directly from the Authority after attaining the age of 62 with af least 20 years of service. As of
June 30, 2015, there were no participants receiving these health care benefits. The Authority does
not anticipate paying any OPEB until fiscal year ending June 30, 2017.

The Authority will pay the entire COBRA Kaiser Health Savings Account (HSA) plan premium. for
the retired employee and their eligible dependents until the employee reaches age 65, at which time
they will qualify for Medicare. The Authority will pay the equivalent of the Kaiser HSA plan
premium towards another health insurance policy selected by the employee in place of this plan.

Under the provisions of Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement Number 45,
Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for Postemployment Benefits Other Than
Pensions, the Authority has elected to use an alternative method in calenlating its OPEB liability,
which is recorded as a noncurrent Hability in the Statement of Net Position., The Authority is on a
pay-as-you-go funding policy, and uses the following assumptions in caleulating the liability on an
annual basis: current COBRA Kaiser HSA rate, 10% annual inflation factor, and .5% investment rate
of return.
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NOTE 11 - CONTINGENT LIABILITIES l

The Authority is subject to litigation arising in the normal course of business. In the opinion of the
Authority’s legal counsel there is no pending litigation, which is likely to have a material adverse
effect on the financial position of the Authority.

The Authority participates in Federal and State grant programs. These programs have been audited
by the Authority’s independent auditors in accordance with the provisions of the Federal Single
Anudit Act, as amended, and applicable State requirements. No cost disallowances were proposed as
a result of these audits; however, these programs are still subject to further examination by the
grantors and the amount, if any, of expenses which may be disallowed by the pranting agencies
cannot be determined at this time. The Authority expects such amounts, if any, to be immaterial,

NOTE 12 - MAJOR CONTRACTOR

The Authority has an agreement dated July 30, 2011 with First Transit, Inc., a private {rangit firm, to
provide transportation management and operations services on behalf of the Authority through June
30, 2016. Expenses recorded under this colitract amounted to $11,310,882 and $11,147,718 for
fiscal years ended June 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively, and are recorded as purchased
transportation.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON
INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
AND ON COMPLIANCE WITH THY, TRANSPORTATION DEVELOPMENT ACT AND
OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN
AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORBANCE
WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Honorable Members of the Board of Directors of
Eastern Contra Costa Transit Authority
Antioch, California

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statement of the Eastern Contra
Costa Transit Authority (Authority), as of and for the year ended-June 30, 2015, and the related notes to
the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated November 20, 2015,

Internal Conirol Over Financinol Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Authority's internal
control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Authority’s internal control. Accordingly, we do
not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Authority’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of petforming their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination
of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement
of the Authority’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis.
A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less
severe than a material weakness, vet important enough to merit attention by those charged with
governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal confrol that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses
may exist that have not been identified.
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Accountancy Corporation F 926,930,135
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Compliance and Other Matters

As patt of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Authority's financial statements are free from
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. Our procedures included the applicable audit procedures
contained in §6667 of Title 21 of California Code of Regulations and fests of compliance with the
applicable provisions of the Transportation Development Act and the allocation instructions and
resolutions of the Metropolitan Transportation Commission. However, providing an opinion on
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express
such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are
required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Authority’s Response to Findings

The Authority’s response to the findings November 20, 2015, which is an integral part of our audits and
should be read in conjunction with this report. The Authority’s response was not subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to desoribe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority’s
internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an andit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the Authority’s internal control and compliance.
Accordingly, this cornmunication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Pleasant Hill, California
November 20, 2015
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON
INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
AND ON COMPLIANCE WITH THE RULES AND REGULATIONS OF THE
PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION MODERNIZATION
IMPROVEMENT AND SERVICE ENHANCEMENT ACCOUNT (PTMISEA)

Honorable Members of the Board of Director of the
Eastern Contra Costa Transit Authority
Antioch, California

We have audited the statement of revenues and expenditures of the Eastern Contra Costa Transit
Authority Public Transportation Modernization, Improvement and Service Enhancement Account
Projects, a program of the Eastern Confra Costa Transit Authority, California, (the Authority) in
accordance with general accepted auditing standards in the United States of America as of and for the
vear ended June 30, 2015, and have issued our report thereon dated November 20, 2015.

In connection with our audit, we have read and performed the applicable audit procedures contained in
the Public Transportation Modernization, Improvement and Service Enhancement Account Guideline
(Guideline) adopted by the California of Department of Transportation,

Internal Conitrol over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Authority's internal
control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Authority’s internal control. Accordingly, we do
not express an opinion on the offectiveness of Authority’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstaternents on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination
of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement
of the Authority’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis.
A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in intetnal control that is less
severe than a material weakness, yet important enough fo merit attention by those charged with
governance.

Our consideration of internal confrol was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
wealnesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in intetnal conirol that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses
may exist that have not been identified.
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Compliance and Other Matiers

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts,
and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Authority’s Response to Findings

The Authority’s response to the findings identified in our audit are described in our separately issued
Memorandum on Internal Control dated November 20, 2015, which i§ an integral part of our audits and
should be read in conjunction with this report. The Authority’s response was not subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority’s
infernal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the Authority’s internal control and compliance.
Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Pleasant Hill, California
November 20, 2015
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